ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 11, 2015
1:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lesil MGQuire, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator Ma Costello

Senator Bill W el echowski
MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Peter M cciche

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 30

"An  Act

marij uan

open nmarijuana contai ner;

- HEARD & HELD

rel ating

controlled substances; relating to

a, relating to driving notor vehicles when there is an

and providing for an effective date.”

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 30

SHORT TI TLE: MARI JUANA REG CONT. SUBST; CRI MES; DEFENSES

SPONSOR(s): JUDI Cl ARY

01/ 23/ 15 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 23/ 15 (S) JUD, FIN

01/ 26/ 15 (S) JUD AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 26/ 15 (S) Heard & Held

01/ 26/ 15 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 28/ 15 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 28/ 15 (H -- Conpanion Bill --

01/ 30/ 15 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
01/ 30/ 15 (S -- Meeting Postponed to Mnday 2/2/2015
02/ 02/ 15 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 02/ 15 (S -- Reschedul ed from01/30/15 --
02/ 05/ 15 (S) FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
02/ 05/ 15 (S Schedul ed but Not Heard

SENATE JUD COW TTEE

-1- February 11, 2015



02/ 06/ 15 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 06/ 15 (S) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

02/ 09/ 15 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 09/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 15 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 11/ 15 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

AMY SALTZMAN, St af f

Senator Lesil MQiire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Delivered a sectional analysis of SB 30,
version |.

JORDAN SHI LLI NG, St af f

Senat or John Coghi | |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Aided in the sectional analysis of SB 30.

H LARY MARTIN, Legal Drafter

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services
Legi slative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Legal drafter of SB 30.

NANCY MEADE, GCeneral Counsel

Adm ni strative Staff

Ofice of the Adm nistrative D rector

Al aska Court System

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions and provided information
related to SB 30 fromthe Court's perspective.

BRUCE SHULTE, Spokesnan

Coal ition for Responsible Cannabis Legi sl ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on and offered suggestions on SB
30, version I.

KACI SCHROEDER, Assistant Attorney General

Departnment of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 30, version
l.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 11, 2015



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:34: 03 PM

CHAIR LESIL MCGQURE <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Costello, Welechowski, and Chair
McGui re.

SB_ 30- MARI JUANA REG CONT. SUBST; CRI MES; DEFENSES

1:34:24 PM

CHAIR MCGUI RE announced the consideration of SB 30. [CSSB 30
| abel ed 29-LS0231\|I was before the commttee.] She reviewed the
agenda and the invited testifiers.

1:36:25 PM
AMY SALTZMAN, Aide to the Senate Judiciary Commttee and Staff
to Senator MCQuire, introduced herself.

1: 36: 28 PM
JORDAN SHILLING Staff to Senator John Coghill, introduced
hi nsel f.

SENATOR COCGHI LL informed the committee that he asked M.
Saltzman and M. Shilling to read through the first 2-3 sections
to show how t hey conform and then nove on to the new cri nes.

M5. SALTZMAN reviewed the sectional analysis for Sections 1-4 of
SB 30, version |.

Section 1 Anmends AS 02.30.030(b) Operation of an
aircraft under the influence.

A person cannot operate an aircraft with a crew nmenber
or passenger who is intoxicated.

Adds “narijuana.”

Section 2 Amends AS 04.16.050(e) Possession, control
or consunption by a person under the age of 21.
Requires the court to prohibit the use of alcohol as a
condition of probation.

Adds “narijuana.”

Section 3  Anends AS  05.45.100(c) Duti es and
responsi bilities of skiers.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 11, 2015



Prohibiting the use of a trammay, ski slope or trai
under the influence.
Adds “marijuana.”

Section 4 Anmends AS 08.68.270 Gounds for denial,
suspensi on, or revocation.

Grounds for denial, suspension, or revocation of a
nursing |license for habitual use of alcohol.

Adds “marijuana.”

SENATOR COGHI LL suggested Ms. Saltzman nove past the first 44
sections unl ess nenbers had questi ons.

CHAIR MCGQU RE clarified that these changes are being nade
because marijuana is being renoved as a controlled substance and
will be regulated the sane way as al cohol.

1:41:04 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he didn't object to Senator Coghill's
proposal but sone sections nay cause concern because there are
sone differences between drug and al cohol abuse and the use of
marij uana. Section 4, for exanple, tal ks about i cense
revocation for sonmeone who habitually abuses al coholic beverages
or marijuana. He questioned how it would apply to someone who
uses nedical marijuana and if it would be considered abuse if
someone used it every day. Section 26 provides another exanple.
A judicial officer may require a person to refrain from the
consunption of alcoholic beverages or marijuana. If a person is
using marijuana that is prescribed for nedical purposes, this
allows a judge to deny that use.

CHAI R MCGUI RE sunmmarized the concern. A prior initiative passed
that allowed for the wuse of nedical marijuana but the
| egislature did not fully inplenent the |aw. The question is how
t hese uses would interplay with nedical marijuana.

1:43:10 PM

H LARY MARTIN, Legal Drafter, Legislative Legal and Research
Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, stated that the issue
exi sted when marijuana was a controlled substance. She advised
that it is still a bit of an open question but the defense would
cover anyone who is charged with a marijuana crine. She directed
attention to page 37 where the affirmative defense that exists
in statute is noved into Sec. 17.38. 300.

1: 44: 15 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 11, 2015



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he didn't think that would apply to
the sections he pointed out because Sec. 17.38.300 relates to
prosecuti ons.

M5. MARTIN agreed and reiterated that it was a problem before
and the bill doesn't fix the issue.

CHAIR MCGU RE said it would be a policy call to anmend the bil
to insert "notwithstanding the use of nedical nmarijuana” as
opposed to keeping the affirmative defense in Sec 17.38. 300.

1:46: 29 PM
SENATOR COSTELLO questioned why the reference to a schedule VIA
controlled substance appears on page 13, lines 13-16 if

marijuana is renoved as a controlled substance in statute.

M5. MARTIN responded that it's drafted that way in crimnal |aw
to preserve the nunbering of statutes. If sections are bracketed
and renunbered it can be an issue when | ooking at court records
because the crinmes look different for previous convictions. The
subsections that contain a reference to a VIA controlled
substance are in the repeal er section.

SENATOR COSTELLO asked where the repeal er section is | ocated.
M5. MARTIN replied it's on page 91 Section 160.

Responding to a drafting question from Senator Coghill, she
confirmed that after the bill passes those sections wll show
t hey are repeal ed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI directed attention to Section 42 on page 25
and asked if the provision would generate a fiscal note. It adds
al cohol and marijuana to the educational prograns the
comm ssioner of health and social services is required to
provide to deter abuse.

M5. SALTZMAN said she asked the question but has not received an
answer .

SENATOR COSTELLO described an educational program from Col orado
to deter marijuana abuse. She asked if the commttee m ght
entertain a conversation about expanding that to include
i nformati on about the law and what conduct is and is not |ega
wWth regard to marijuana use and possessi on.

1: 51: 57 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 11, 2015



MR. SHI LLI NG revi ewed Secti on 45.

Section 45 Amends AS 17.38.070(a) Lawful operation of
marijuana - related facilities.

Est abli shes that a person 21 years of age or ol der may
own, operate, be an agent of or be enployed by a
retail marijuana store with a valid registration and
perform all of the related duties and activities and
not be prosecuted for it or have it be a basis for
seizure or forfeiture. Language from Ball ot Measure 2
with the exception of the phrase: “NOI'W THSTANDI NG ANY
OTHER PROVI SION OF LAW and other stylistic clarifying
changes.

He noted that the clause "notw thstandi ng any other provision of
| aw' was not included in the next five sections of the bill. He
suggested that M. Mrtin discuss why that clause could be
probl emati c.

M5. MARTIN said the phrase generally is avoided in statutes
because it can cause confusion and conflict.

SENATOR COGHI LL sunmari zed the reason for renoving the phrase.

M5. MARTIN agreed that the |anguage potentially would have
nullified the crimnal laws and penalties associated with the
actions in Section 45.

1:54: 13 PM
MR. SHI LLI NG began a review of Section 50.

Section 50

AS 17.38.200. M sconduct involving marijuana in the
first degree.

A person comrits the crime of MM in the 1st degree,
which is a class A m sdeneanor, if they:

- Possess marijuana with an aggregate weight of nore
t han four ounces

- Possess 25+ plants

- Manufacture or deliver nore than one ounce.

- Deliver any anount to a person under 21 years of
age, who is not a patient registered under AS 17.37
(medi cal marijuana statutes).

- Manufacture “butane hash” wi thout a |icense.

- Are a nmarijuana establishnent and allows for a
person under the age of 21 to enter and remain in the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 11, 2015



facility; allow the wuse of nmarijuana; or deliver
marijuana to a person under the age of 21.

He acknow edged that there is a question about the term
"deliver."

CHAIR MCQU RE advised that a class A m sdeneanor carries a
maxi mum fine of $10,000 and a potential jail tinme of 0-1 year.

SENATOR COGHI LL stated that this section specifies nore than
four ounces because of the Ravin case.

MR. SHILLING acknow edged that there is sone question as to
whi ch case al |l ows possession of up to 25 plants.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked how many plants are currently permtted in
t he hone.

MR. SHILLING replied it is a violation to have from 7-24 plants
and a m sdeneanor to have 25 or nore.

1: 57: 09 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI referred to page 30, lines 1-3, and asked
why wat er - based extraction is not included in Sec. 17.38.200.

MR. SHI LLING replied the intention is to exclude the use of
solvents that m ght be flamabl e.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the Ilanguage in paragraph (4)
i ncl udes wat er - based extraction.

M5. MARTIN said it's a possibility, but it isn't clear because
the termsolvent isn't defined.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if she agrees that it's a good idea
to clarify the matter.

MS. MARTIN said it should be included if the commttee wants to
make it clear that a person could use water-based extraction
nmet hods.

SENATOR COGHILL offered his wunderstanding that manufacturing
"but ane hash" in the hone is volatile. He questioned whether it
needs to be defi ned.

MR SHILLING said the bill specifies that a person who is
registered or licensed is not prohibited from using a solvent-

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 11, 2015



based extraction nmethod for nmanufacturing "butane hash.” He
admtted that the sectional does not nmake that clear.

2:00: 52 PM
MR SHI LLI NG revi ewed AS 17. 38. 210.

AS 17.38.210. M sconduct involving marijuana in the
second degree.

A person commts the crime of MM in the 2nd degree,
which is a class B m sdeneanor, if they are:

- I n possession of 7-24 plants.

- Unlicensed and deliver nmore than 1 ounce of
marijuana and 6 inmmature plants, 1 ounce or less for
remuner ati on, or up to 6 immture plants for
remuner ati on.

- Selling any anount of marijuana wthout a |icense.

MR. SHILLING noted that he m sspoke earlier when he said that
possession of 7-24 plants was a viol ation.

CHAIR MCQU RE advised that a class B misdeneanor carries a
maxi mum fine of $2,000 and a potential jail time of 0-90 days.

MR SHI LLI NG revi ewed AS 17. 38.220

AS 17.38.220. M sconduct involving marijuana in the
third degree.

A person comrits the crime of MM in the 3rd degree,
which is a violation, if hel/she:

- Manufactures marijuana in a location where the
pl ant s are in public view, not secure from
unaut hori zed access, or on property not in possession
of the person or wthout consent of the property
owner .

- Is under 21 and attenpts to purchase marijuana with
false identification, or otherwi se msrepresents the
person’s age.

- Is wunder 18 and possesses, uses, or displays one
ounce or |ess of marijuana.

- Possesses 1.01 ounces up to four ounces.

SENATOR COGHILL asked if the provision relating to a person

under age 18 aligns with the statutory provisions for alcohol
for a person under age 18.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 11, 2015



MR. SHILLING answered no; it beconmes a class B m sdeneanor when
a mnor under age 18 possesses al cohol three or nore tines.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what the puni shnent is.

CHAI R MCAUI RE advised that a violation carries a maxi num fi ne of
$500 and no jail tine.

SENATOR COSTELLO asked if a violation would go on a mnor's
record.

M5. SALTZMAN replied a violation for a mnor is treated the sane
as for an adult. She deferred further explanation to Ms. Meade.

CHAI R MCGUI RE explained that the goal is to divert behavior so
the idea is to npve towards a violation versus a class B
m sdeneanor.

2:05: 04 PM

NANCY MEADE, Ceneral Counsel, Admnistrative Staff, Ofice of
the Administrative Director, Alaska Court System stated that
the court is neutral on the bill. Addressing the question of
keeping sone records confidential, she explained that in this
draft sonebody under age 18 who is charged with the crine of
m sconduct involving marijuana in the first and second degree
woul d be adjudicated as a juvenile delinquent. Those cases are
confidential and the juvenile's name would not appear on
Cour t Vi ew.

In the current draft, msconduct involving marijuana in the
third and fourth degree are violations. Violations are terned
m nor of fenses (nmo) for court processing reasons and are public.
They are not confidential. If a person under age 18 conmits a
crime, they generally are under the jurisdiction of the Division
of Juvenile Justice (DJJ), but DJJ does not have the authority
to prosecute violations so the mnor would be treated l|ike an
adult. H's or her name would be on CourtView and the case would
not be confidential. She noted that the legislature could
certainly decide to nake those cases confidential.

SENATOR COSTELLO expressed concern about protections for mnors
and suggested the conmttee revisit the penalties.

M5. MEADE restated that the legislature could draft |egislation
to nmake certain violations confidential, but under current |aw a
17-year-old who gets a speeding ticket will have their nane
appear on CourtView with a case suffix of no for mnor offense

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 11, 2015



She noted that the current draft of the bill has a juvenile
del i nquency provision on pages [80-81] that lists all the m nor
of fenses (including alcohol offenses) for which a mnor is
treated |ike an adult.

SENATOR COSTELLO asked for clarification of m nor offenses.

M5. MEADE explained that if a 17-year-old received a ticket it
would be a violation. In the bill those would be m sconduct
involving marijuana in the third and fourth degree. Those cases
appear on CourtView and the case suffix is nb. She clarified
that a mnor offense does not refer to age; it's that the
offense is less substantial than a major offense. Cicking on
the suffix in CourtVieww |l show the actual offense.

SENATOR COGHILL stated that a msdeneanor is a crine and a
violation is not.

SENATOR MCGUI RE agreed and added that Senator Costello's concern
is that it my be a disproportionate penalty. In the context of

the bill, a mnor who is charged with a marijuana violation wll
have their nane appear on CourtView, but a m nor who is charged
with a marijuana crime wll not. She asked the nenbers to
consider adding language in the bill that makes it clear that

these violations for mnors are to be held confidential.

2:12: 40 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI stated support for clarifying that these
violations should not appear on CourtView. He added that it
doesn't nake sense that the nore serious crinmes are not public,
yet these mnor crinmes are public and wll appear on CourtView
forever. He asked if marijuana is a barrier crinme on the federal
| evel for future enploynent.

M5. MEADE replied a sub-group of the Crimnal Justice Conm ssion
is collecting that information, but she didn't know the answer.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said it's a good point since nmarijuana is treated
differently at the federal |evel.

2:14: 27 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL argued that it is a significant reproof and it
will get a minor's attention if they are caught and ticketed for
a violation. "To nme the reproofs for youngsters need to be
there." It will be on CourtView but it's not as daming as a
crimnal penalty, he opined.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 11, 2015



SENATOR COSTELLO stressed the inportance of understanding
precisely what the bill does in order to nmake a better policy
call.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he believes it's inportant to correct
t he behavior when a child makes a m stake, but the current draft
i nposes nore than a slap on the wist. H's perspective is that
it's a bad policy call.

M5. MEADE suggested the commttee | ook at paragraph (5) on page
81, lines 4-6. It is the current statute for mnor consum ng or
possessi on of al cohol. Those are currently on CourtVi ew.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated that it's tine to rethink the
puni shrents for m nor consum ng and possessi on.

2:19:12 PM

CHAIR MCGUI RE said that whatever policy decision is mde wth
respect to the violations that appear on CourtView, it nakes
sense to consider what's on page 81, paragraph (5).

MB. SALTZMAN conti nued the review of Section 50.

AS 17.38.230. M sconduct involving marijuana in the
fourth degree.

A person comrits the crime of MM in the 4th degree,
which is a violation, if they:

- Are over 21 and use any anount of marijuana in a
public place

- Are between 18-20 and use, display, or possess 1
ounce or |ess of marijuana.

She noted that the definition for "public place" is the sane as
in current statute.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if MM 4 violations wll appear on
Court Vi ew.

M5. SALTZMAN answered yes. She continued to review Section 50.

AS 17.38.240. Proof of registration to be exhibited on
demand; penalty.

Requires a licensee to have a copy of their marijuana
license at all tines when transporting nore than one
ounce of marijuana, and shall present the license on
demand by a peace officer

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 11, 2015



AS 17.38.250. Bail forfeiture for certain offenses.
Requires the court to nmake a bail schedule allow ng
defendants to pay the fine for violations wthout a
court appearance for MM 3rd (AS 17.38.220) and MM
4th (AS 17.38.230.)

AS 17.38.260. Aggregate weight of Ilive marijuana
pl ant s.

For purposes of calculating the aggregate weight of a
marijuana plant, the weight shall be 1/6th the weight
of the plant after the roots have been renoved.

AS 17.38.270. Rehabilitation.

A person convicted of msconduct relating to the use
of marijuana may be commtted to the Departnent of
Corrections for treatnent for not nore than one year.

M5. SALTZMAN noted that this provision needs to be renoved
because it doesn't apply.

AS 17.38.280. Restriction on prosecution for certain
persons in connection with a marijuana overdose.

A person may not be prosecuted for certain marijuana
crimes if that person, in good faith, sought nedi cal

or | aw enf or cement assi stance for thenselves or
another person who s experiencing a nmarijuana
over dose.

AS 17.38.290. Forfeitures and sei zures.
Provides and establishes a process for forfeiture of

marijuana and other assets upon violation of AS
17.38.200 — 17. 38. 230.

M5. SALTZMAN advised that the foregoing section needs to be
rewitten or elim nated.

AS 17.38.300. Affirmative defense to a prosecution
under AS 17. 38. 200-17. 38. 230; nedi cal use of
mari j uana.
Establishes an affirmative defense in Title 17 for
certain conduct by nedical nmarijuana patients and
caregi vers.

M5. SALTZMAN revi ewed Section 51.

Section 51 Anends AS 17.38.900(6) Definitions

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 11, 2015



Provides the definition of marijuana.

MS. SALTZMAN said the definition that was used in the ball ot
initiative was anended to delete the wrd "salt." A few
stylistic changes were al so nade.

2:24:51 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked Ms. Martin to clarify whether a
person who uses nedical nmarijuana has to nmount an affirmative
defense to prove that possession is |egal.

M5. MARTIN responded that the affirmative defense | anguage in AS
11.71 for nedical marijuana patients was noved to AS 17.38. She
added that neither a nedical marijuana patient nor a parent
caregiver would have an issue with possession of less than 1
ounce.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for clarification that this would
only apply to the sections previously discussed where there
could be over 1 ounce.

M5. MARTIN said that's correct; if there is no crine associated
with the possession there is no need to have a defense.

SENATOR COSTELLO asked how an affirmative defense for nedica
mari j uana works.

CHAI R MCGUI RE asked Ms. Schroeder to address the question.

2:28:48 PM

KACI SCHRCEDER, Assistant Attorney General, Departnment of Law,
explained that the normal course of events is that the
prosecution is notified that the defendant intends to put on an
affirmative defense. At trial, the burden of proof is on the
defendant to prove his/her innocence by a preponderance of the
evidence rather than beyond a reasonable doubt which is
generally the burden of proof required for the prosecution.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if first there would have to be an
underlying crime, and then the affirnmative defense for nedica
mari j uana.

M5. SCHROEDER said that's correct. She added that Senator
W el echowski brings up a good point that the nedical marijuana
statutes do not provide any nore protection in the crimnal
context than the initiative.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 11, 2015



SENATOR COGHI LL opined that the mxed standard relating to one
ounce and four ounces adds to the confusion.

CHAIR MCGQU RE drew a parallel between possession of nedical
marijuana and possession of OxyContin after shoulder surgery.
She opined that the |ikelihood of being charged with a crine is
fairly | ow.

2:31: 24 PM
MS. SALTZMAN revi ewed Section 52.

Section 52 Adds a new section to AS 17.38.900
Definitions

Adds definitions for crimnal negligence, deliver(y),
knowi ngly, manufacture, rmarijuana concentrate, and
public place.

MR. SHILLING added that the |anguage on page 39, line 11,
speci fies that growing marijuana for personal use is not part of
the definition of "manufacturing."

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked M. Shilling to discuss the reasoning
for selecting the definition of "public place" given in AS
11. 81. 900.

MR SHILLING replied it was a policy call to have all the crinmes
on the books point towards the sanme conprehensive definition of
"public place.”

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI read the definition of "public place" in AS
11.81.900(b)(53) and suggested that sone people would question
i ncl udi ng apartnment houses and busi nesses.

(53) "public place" neans a place to which the public
or a substantial group of persons has access and
i ncl udes hi ghways, transportation facilities, schools,
pl aces of anusenent or business, parks, playgrounds,
prisons, and hallways, |obbies, and other portions of
apartnment houses and hotels not constituting roons or
apartnents designed for actual residence;

He asked where this definition is used.

MR SHI LLI NG deferred to Ms. Schroeder.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 11, 2015



CHAI R MCGUI RE asked Ms. Schroeder to al so discuss whether or not
consunption of alcohol in a public place is treated the sane
way.

M5. SCHRCEDER advi sed that there is no state |law that prohibits
al cohol consunption in public; it is generally done through
| ocal ordinance. She couldn't give a ready exanple of another
crime that refers to public place and wasn't sure if Title 4
defines it differently.

CHAI R MCGUI RE asked Ms. Martin if she could answer the question.

2:35:54 PM

M5. MARTIN confirmed that Title 4 does not use "public place.”
The term is used in a handful of crimnal statutes including
stalking in the second degree.

SENATOR COGHI LL stated that the term was used in an effort to
align with the initiative

CHAIR MCGQUIRE agreed with Senator Coghill that the initiative
said no marijuana use in a public place. She described the
current definition as a placeholder and noted that the Al coholic
Beverage Control (ABC) Board is | ooking for a definition.

SENATOR COGHILL read the initiative |language that refers to
publ i c consunption of marijuana.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that part of the definition of
"public place” in Title 11 includes hallways. He asked what
constitutes a hallway and if that it mght include part of a
personal residence.

M5. MARTIN clarified that it is talking about hallways and | obby
areas in an apartnment house or hotel, not individual roons or
apartnents.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the reference to "places of

busi ness” would prohibit setting up a place where people can
snoke at an aut horized busi ness.

M5. MARTI N conceded that "business" is not defined and it would
require some drafting changes to all ow marijuana establishnments.

SENATOR COGHI LL suggested that the commttee nmay have to devel op
a definition because snoking tobacco in your own car is

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- February 11, 2015



acceptable, but sone people considered a car to be a public
pl ace.

CHAIR MCQUIRE asked M. Shulte to discuss what he envisioned
when the term "public place" was included in the initiative and
how that fits in the context of the current draft.

2:40: 30 PM

BRUCE SHULTE, Spokesman, Coalition for Responsible Cannabis
Legislation (CRCL), stated that CRCL does not dispute that
public consunption of marijuana is unlawful, but would |ike the
definition to be expanded to provide a little nore flexibility.
He described it as an opportunity for businesses to allow the
consunption of marijuana on their premses the sanme as
establishments t hat can serve al cohol under varyi ng
circunstances and for different durations, and a challenge to
make the distinction.

CHAIR MCGUI RE asked if he had additional testinony on the
current draft.

2:42: 15 PM

MR. SHULTE said he would highlight a few points in the witten
corments he submtted. The first is that while he agrees wth
the intent of AS 17.38.200(a)(4), he would suggest a specific
reference to the use of volatile or explosive gases to extract
hash or hash oil. This would allow other, conpletely safe
extraction processes such as ice water or dry ice that a hone
user m ght enpl oy.

He then highlighted item 4) on page three of his witten
comments relating to 17.38.200(a)(5). He acknow edged that the
rewite of [Title 4] isn't before the legislature yet, but
suggested it mght be an opportunity to bring the rules for

marijuana into line with the eventual rules for alcohol. In this
context, it would becone a regulatory infraction rather than a
crimnal act for a person working in a retail store to
intentionally or wunintentionally sell wmarijuana to a person

under age 21.

He next suggested elimnating AS 17.38.260 entirely. This
section describes the method for ascertaining the aggregate
weight of a live marijuana plant. The process requires renova
of the roots, which would destroy the plant. He pointed out that
in a commercial setting that it could amunt to tens of
t housands of dollars in inventory.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 11, 2015



MR. SHULTE articulated concern with AS 17.38.290 relating to
forfeiture and seizures, but acknow edged that it nore or |ess
m mcs the |language in the corresponding statute for alcohol. If
the language is included, he requested that the |egislature
clarify that the intent is that any property or funds seized
under this law would be wused to fund drug education and
treat nent prograns.

He stated agreement with renoving the term "salt" from the
definition of marijuana under AS 17.38.900(6).

2:48: 06 PM

MR. SHULTE said he first viewed the repeal of AS 17.38.020 and
AS 17.38.030 as a drafting decision given that many of the
provi sions are addressed in the new AS 17.38.200. However, on
further reflection he determned that both sections should be
retained. Both were in the voter initiative and they articulate
what is lawful while AS 17.38.200 states the penalties for
activities that are unlawful. He described the sections as
conpl enentary and respectfully requested that they be retained.

SENATOR COGHI LL noted the penalty for msconduct involving
marijuana in the third degree for possessing nore than one ounce
and then the definition of "marijuana.” He asked M. Shulte if
he agrees that it could be one ounce of the oil derivative.

MR. SHULTE conceded that could be one interpretation. He then
poi nted out that one ounce of hash oil would be a rather |arge
guantity outside a comrercial transaction.

SENATOR COGHI LL expressed concern that the penalty is basically
a ticket. He asked for help understanding what an ounce neans
and how to value the derivatives under the definitions for
i nposi ng penal ties.

MR. SHULTE responded that he understands the concern and he
woul d work on some recomendati ons.

2:53:51 PM

MR. SHULTE stated that CRCL is comritted to an orderly process
and recognizes that February 24 only changes personal
consunption and cultivation. The group |ooks forward to a nine-
nmonth regulatory process and then another three nonths before
the state starts to accept permts.

W're not expecting to see conmmercial or retai
businesses go into effect wuntil sonetine in 2016,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 11, 2015



spring or summer. That's what our nenbers are
committed to and that's the nessage we're trying to
get out there.

CHAIR MCGUI RE asked how he mght help communicate with the
public so there is an orderly transition.

MR. SHULTE replied CRCL intends to get the nessage out through
social nmedia and letters to the weditor. The goal 1is to
articulate what is lawful as of February 24, 2015 and what will
not be lawful for the 9-14 nonths thereafter.

2:56:43 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL reiterated the request for help wth a
definition based on val ue.

MR. SHULTE conmitted to help with the clarification.

CHAIR MCGUI RE held SB 30 in conmttee.

2:57:41 PM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,

Chair MQuire adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing Conmmittee
neeting at 2:57 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- February 11, 2015



